
CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP 
Thursday, 15th January, 2015 at 7.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Civic Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To receive Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any 

matters on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 3) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2014. 

 
4. Matters arising   
 
 Any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting. 

 
5. Community Based Assets Review  (Pages 4 - 6) 
 
 Presentations will be made from representatives of Community Groups, 

following this there will be an opportunity for the Overview Working 
Group to ask the representatives questions that will support future policy 
and use of assets.  
 
 

6. Work Plan  (Page 7) 
 
 To review the Overview Working Group’s work plan for the current year. 

 
7. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 

received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be 
specified in the minutes. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP 
HELD ON 

 
27 November 2014 7.30  - 8.35 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Overview Working Group Members 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop (Chair) 
Councillor Ian Beckett (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor David Carter 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Manny Doku 
Councillor Waida Forman 
Councillor Christine O'Dell 
Councillor Dennis Palmer 
Councillor Bill Pryor 

 
Officers 
Donna Beechener, Revenues and Benefits Manager 
Joel West, Governance Support Officer 

 
 
21. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Linda Pailing. 
 

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

23. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 
2014 are agreed as a correct record. 

 
24. MATTERS ARISING  

 
With reference to Minute 18, Community Based Assets report, Resolution 
B, the Overview Working Group noted that a question on this subject had 
been submitted by Councillor Linda Pailing to the Chair of the Council, 
Councillor Ian Beckett, at the meeting of Full Council on 23 October 2014. 
In response to the question, the Chair reported that he had received email 
confirmation from all three group leaders confirming their commitment to 
the direction of travel of the Overview Working Group’s Review of 
Community Based Assets. The Overview Working Group Chair, Councillor 
Maggie Hulcoop, reported that she had also seen the emails and was 
pleased that this matter had been resolved. 
 

1

Agenda Item 3



25. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME  
 
The Overview Working Group received a report, from Simon Freeman, 
Head of Finance, on the Review of the Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme. Donna Beechener, Revenues and Benefits Manager, introduced 
and summarised the report.  
 
In response to questions from Councillors, Donna provided more details 
on the proposed £70 penalty for claimants who incorrectly or knowingly fail 
to report changes in their circumstances. Donna explained that, if agreed, 
the penalty would be introduced following a lead-in period that would 
involve appropriate publicity. There would be an element of Officer 
discretion in the decision whether to apply in a penalty in each case and a 
claimant’s personal circumstances would be taken into account. There is 
both an internal appeals process and an external tribunal that claimants 
can turn to if they feel the penalty has been applied incorrectly.  
 
The Overview Working Group expressed concern that some community 
groups (such as non-British Nationals or those with poor 
literacy/numeracy) may be more vulnerable to the proposed penalty as 
they are more likely to make mistakes on their Council Tax Support 
application. Councillors suggested that additional publicity to target such 
groups may be desirable. Donna explained that the Council has a 
corporate approach to translation services which the Council Tax Support 
application process must adhere to. The translation policy was approved 
by Cabinet in July 2014 following a review by the Resources, Housing and 
Governance Overview Working Group.   
 
In response to queries from the Overview Working Group, Donna provided 
information on the data-matching exercises currently used, both to detect 
potential fraud amongst Council Tax Support claimants and to identify 
those who may be eligible for support, but do not claim. 
 

RESOLVED that the Overview Working Group: 
 
A Acknowledges the current position regarding the 2014/15 Local 

Council Tax Support Scheme and endorses the principle of 
stability within the scheme for 2015/16. 

 
B Endorses the Pan Essex Business Case approach to protecting 

the Council Tax base and the proposal to introduce penalties as 
detailed in the report. 

 
C RECOMMENDS to Cabinet that: 
 

(i) The Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015/16, be 
unchanged from the 2014/15 scheme; and  

 
(ii) The proposal to introduce penalties as detailed in paragraph 

25 of the report be agreed. 

2



 
26. WORK PLAN  

 
The Overview Working Group received a report that outlined its work plan 
for the current year.  
 
Councillors felt that it would be beneficial if background information on the 
Review of Empty Council Properties could be provided prior to formal 
consideration of the matter (to be scheduled no earlier than March 2015).  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 

A The Work Plan 2014/15 is noted. 
 

B The Chairman will ask the Head of Housing if the Overview 
Working Group can be provided with any background information 
on the Review of Empty Council Properties work plan item that 
may help it prepare for this review. 

 
27. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIR OF THE OVERVIEW WORKING 
GROUP 

 

3



REPORT TO: CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP 
 

DATE: 15 JANUARY 2015  
 

TITLE: COMMUNITY ASSET REVIEW  
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

GRAEME BLOOMER, HEAD OF 
REGENERATION (01279) 446270 
 

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:  JOE MCGILL, PROPERTY AND FACILITIES 
MANAGER  (01279) 446800 

 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Overview Working Group consider the information/evidence presented 

from the community representatives invited to address this meeting 
 

B In light of the information and evidence so far garnered by the review, 
consider whether to proceed to a detailed options appraisal for 
disposal/alternative operation of the community assets. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1.  The Overview Working Group agreed at the meeting on 31 July 2014 to 

undertake a review of community assets to evaluate how they could assist in 
the delivery of first class community services and to identify if there are 
opportunities to make better use of those assets. 
 

2.  At the meeting of 15 October 2014, the Overview Working Group reviewed 
and discussed a large number of Council owned assets with a view to 
furthering how better the Council could work with community partners to 
deliver first class community services. The attendance of three community 
partners at tonight’s meeting will afford the opportunity for Councillors (and 
Officers) to increase their understanding of the issues particular to each 
community partner and the part that the Council’s community assets can best 
play in the future delivery of community services. 

 
ISSUES 
  
3.  There are community groups within Harlow who deliver excellent community 

services from Council buildings. What separates these groups out is their ability to 
engage with the local communities and run services that specifically target 
community wellbeing. They have a model (call it a business model / community 
model) that supports the Council’s well-being strategy as well as securing revenue 
and capital funding.  They understand the relationship between the Council as the 
enabler (providing the asset) and that of the delivery model for community 

4

Agenda Item 5



services.  
 

4.  Harlow Council’s Corporate Equality Policy endorses the need to support local 
charitable, voluntary or ‘not for profit’ organisations that provide supplementary 
services to our community. The Council requires them to operate an equal 
opportunities policy and demonstrate that they will make a positive difference to 
residents of Harlow and that their activities contribute to the achievement of the 
Council’s Strategic Priorities.  
 

5.  Three community organisations have agreed to attend the Overview Working 
Group meeting on the 15 January 2015 to provide in-depth information on how 
each operates and how service provision may be improved. In the first instance 
they will present a brief history of how they were established and what they have 
achieved since inception along with a strategic overview of how they and other 
community groups have the potential to move forward in a climate of ever 
decreasing resources.  
 

6.  The names of the speakers are set out below along with web links to the 
organisations. 
 
Niel Brierley BATT’s Norman Booth Centre  
http://batts.org.uk/sites/batts.org.uk/files/BATTS%20News%202%20Jan%2015.pdf 
 
Jackie Sully Rainbow Services  
http://rainbowservices.org.uk/ 
 
Karen Bartlett Great Parndon Community Association  
http://gpca.co/ 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

Any recommendations following this review and reported to Cabinet for approval 
will be fed into the local plan preparation.  
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
None specific at this time  

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

 
Housing 

None specific at this time 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
 
 

5

http://batts.us9.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6f8ee65f903a36901cb09f3df&id=e90b0a1e51&e=a790ba87cd
http://rainbowservices.org.uk/
http://gpca.co/


Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

The use of community assets is a key component within the Councils delivery 
strategy to ensure that the well-being programme which includes equalities and 
social inclusion continue to be delivered for the wider benefit of the community.   
Author: Maureen Pearman, Community Leisure and Cultural Service 
Manager on behalf of Graham Branchett, Chief Operating Officer 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
Recommendations made by this group to Cabinet must include relevant impact 
statements that may affect current leases, terms of occupancy and / or future use 
in line with Community Right to Bid report adopted on the 14 November 2014.  
Author: Brian Keane, Interim Head of Governance 

 

 
Background Papers 
[These are papers referred to in the preparation of the report that are not 
attached as appendices but that are available for public or Councillor Study.] 
 
Localism Act 2011 
The Assets of Community Value (England) Regulation 2012 
Community Right to Bid : Non Statutory advice note for local authorities  
Local Plan Review   
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
None  
 

6



Updated 06/01/15 

Cabinet Overview Working Group  

Work Plan 2014/15 

 

12 March 2015  

Future of Town Centre – Part 2  Graeme Bloomer 

Housing Works Packages 2015/16 Andrew Murray 

To be allocated  

Empty Council Properties (scoping report to be 
considered no earlier than March 2015) 

Andrew Murray 

M11 Junction 7a (subject to receipt of 
consultation information 
from Essex County Council ) 

Graeme Bloomer 

 

 
 
 

7

Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Community Based Assets Review
	6 Work Plan

